
MAYOR                      INTERIM  CITY MANAGER 

Brian West Michelle Owens 

 
CITY COUNCIL CLERK OF COUNCIL  
Monty Parks Mayor pro tem Jan LeViner 

Bill Garbett  

Spec Hosti 
Tony Ploughe CITY ATTORNEY 

Nick Sears Edward M. Hughes 

Kathryn Williams Tracy O’Connell 

CITY OF TYBEE ISLAND 

 
P.O. Box 2749 – 403 Butler Avenue, Tybee Island, Georgia 31328-2749 

(866) 786-4573 – FAX (866) 786-5737 
www.cityoftybee.org 

 

A G E N D A  
REGULAR MEETING OF TYBEE ISLAND CITY COUNCIL 

April 11, 2024 at 6:30 PM 
Please silence all cell phones during Council Meetings 

 
Opening Ceremonies 
     Call to Order 
     Invocation 
     Pledge of Allegiance 

Announcements 
 
Consideration of Items for Consent Agenda  
 
Consideration of the approval of the minutes of the meetings of the Tybee island City Council 

1. Minutes:  City Council Meeting, March 28, 2024 
 
City Manager Discussion and Action Items 
 
Citizens to be Heard:  Please limit comments to 4 minutes.  

2. Pat Leiby:  Dedication Ceremony, Tybee Island Black History Trail 
3. Julia Pearce:  Cape Coast Mayor and Delegation Visit 

 
If there is anyone wishing to speak to anything on the agenda other than the Public Hearings, 
please approached the podium.  Please limit your comments to 4 minutes  
 
Consideration of Approval of Consent Agenda 
 
Public Hearings 

4. Final Major Subdivision Plat Approval:    Christopher Koncul, 708 Butler Avenue 
5. Site Plan Approval, Sec 5-080, Marine Science Center, 37 Meddin, Addition of solar 

panels to the roof of the building 
 
Consideration of Bids, Contracts, Agreements and Expenditures 

6. MOU Mural on Tybrisa Street 
 
 

- Page 1 -



 

 
P.O. Box 2749 – 403 Butler Avenue, Tybee Island, Georgia 31328-2749 

(866) 786-4573 – FAX (866) 786-5737 
www.cityoftybee.org 

Consideration of Ordinances, Resolutions 
7. First Reading, 2024-02, GMEBS-R, City of Tybee Island Defined Benefit Retirement Plan 

 
Council, Officials and City Attorney Considerations and Comments 

8. Tracy O'Connell:  Ante Litem:  Mariah Hay and Joseph Schmidt, Nuisance/Zunzibar 
9. Monty Parks:  Glass Recycling Update 
10. Kathryn Williams:  Request Monthly Financial Reports 

 
Minutes of Boards and Committees 

11. Minutes, Planning Commission, March 18, 2024 
 
Executive Session 
     Discuss litigation, personnel and real estate  
 
Possible vote on litigation, personnel and real estate discussed in executive session 
 
Adjournment 
Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or 
participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are 
required to contact Jan LeViner at 912.472.5080 promptly to allow the City to make reasonable accommodations 
for those persons.   
 
*PLEASE NOTE:  Citizens wishing to speak on items listed on the agenda, other than public hearings, 
should do so during the citizens to be heard section.  Citizens wishing to place items on the council 

meeting agenda must submit an agenda request form to the City Clerk’s office by Thursday at 5:00PM 
prior to the next scheduled meeting.  Agenda request forms are available outside the Clerk’s office at City 

Hall and at www.cityoftybee.org. 
 

 

 

THE VISION OF THE CITY OF TYBEE ISLAND 

 
  

“is to make Tybee Island the premier beach community in which to live, work, and play.” 
 

 

 

THE MISSION OF THE CITY OF TYBEE ISLAND 

 
  

“is to provide a safe, secure and sustainable environment by delivering superior services through responsible 
planning, preservation of our natural and historic resources, and partnership with our community to ensure 
economic opportunity, a vibrant quality of life, and a thriving future.” 

 

 

- Page 2 -

http://www.cityoftybee.org/


File Attachments for Item:

1. Minutes:  City Council Meeting, March 28, 2024

- Page 3 -



 

City Council Minutes,  March 28, 2024 
 
Mayor West called the meeting to order at 6:30PM, March 28, 2024.  Those in attendance 
were, Nick Sears, Monty Parks, Spec Hosti, Kathryn Williams, Tony Ploughe and Bill 
Garbett.    Also attending were Michelle Owens, Interim City Manager; Bubba Hughes, 
City Attorney; Tracy O’Connell, City Attorney; and Jan LeViner, Clerk of Council.   
 
Opening Ceremonies 
     Call to Order 
     Invocation:  Sheron Burgess, Chaplain, American Legion Auxiliary Unit 154 
     Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Mayor West gave a brief update on upcoming events in mid-April 2024.  He stated the 
City has extra help coming, which includes Georgia State Patrol, Department of Natural 
Resources, State Fire Marshal’s Office, Chatham County Sheriff’s Office as well as City 
Staff.  We estimate this will total approximately 140 people.  There will also be Command 
Centers from not only Tybee Island but also Chatham County and from the State.  Mayor 
West reported the most effective plan is to control parking on the Island.  The plan is to 
shut down parking at the south-end of Tybee to include the public parking lots and on 
Butler Avenue.  Ms. Williams asked Mayor West to speak to the meetings held with the 
businesses on the Island.  Mayor West stated it was to introduce the parking plan and to 
get their feedback.  Staff wanted to ensure the business owners were comfortable with the 
parking plan.  Chief Hayes stated she visited Miami Beach along with Staff and what 
worked best for their City was to shut down parking.  In this way, it cuts down on the 
parties and tailgating.  When she returned to Tybee Island, they met with the business 
owners.  In order to keep individuals out of the neighborhoods, the 16th Street Parking Lot 
to 18th Street Parking Lot will be open for Tybee decal parking only and employees of the 
businesses.  Ms. Williams asked, for those businesses that were not aware of the meeting, 
where would the information be available.  Chief Hayes stated Staff hand distributed 
letters to the businesses and Ms. Kendrick confirmed the City’s email platform was also 
used.  Ms. Owens stated there have been two (2) meetings for the businesses and a third 
(3) meeting was offered if necessary.  Information is also on social media.   
 
Consideration of Items for Consent Agenda  

 Minutes, City Council Meeting, March 14, 2024 
 JusticeOne - Court Processing System 
 Lenslock Agreement - Parking Services Body Camera Equipment.  $13,281.00.   

 
Recognitions and Proclamations 
Tiffany Hayes, Chief, Tybee Island Police Department approached Mayor and 

Council.    Recognition of Four Officers and One Communication Officer - Life Saving 

Pins and Certificate.     Chief Hayes stated she would like recognize several officers and a 

Communication Officer due to their life saving efforts on December 13, 2023.  She read from a 

prepared statement outlining the event.  Due to their efforts in saving a life, they will be awarded 

Life Saving Pins and Certificates.  Those officers are Officer James Bishop; Officer Garett Goatley; 

Officer Michael Bensman; Officer Robert Lawler and Communications Officer Amber Warren.    

- Page 4 -Item #1.



 

 
 

Chief Hayes thanked each officer for the dedication and compassion.       Mayor West thanked 

Chief Hayes.

Bill Garbett made a motion to approve the consent agenda.  Spec Hosti seconded.  
Vote was unanimous to approve, 6-0. 
 
Consideration of Bids, Contracts, Agreements and Expenditures 
FCMC - Hazard Mitigation Activities.  Task Order 1.  Contract modification does not 
affect the compensation not-to-exceed limit of $416,500. Kathryn Williams stated it is 
her understanding this is the grant to raise houses and asked for status.  Ms. Owens stated the 
contract needs to be extended as the program continues.  She stated she can invite the Grant 
Administer to speak to Mayor and Council at a future meeting but does not have an update at 
this time.  Ms. Owens explained the City is in Batch 1 of the second award of which twenty-two 
(22) homes have signed up for the grant.  Batch two (2) of the second grant needs to be 
implemented.  The first grant is closed out and completed. Ms. Williams shared her concerns 
regarding communication to the homeowners.  Ms. Owens stated letters have been sent certified 
mail.  Mr. Parks confirmed he received his letter.  Mr. Ploughe confirmed FEMA is still in support 
of this project.    Spec Hosti made a motion to approve.  Nick Sear seconded.  Vote was 
unanimous to approve, 6-0, 
 
Budget Amendment:  Operations Plan and Budget Amendment for Spring Break Plan.  
Ms. Owens explained Staff has been working very hard to get an exact number for the 
Operational Plan.  She is asking for a budget amendment of not to exceed $250,000.  This will 
allow Staff to secure barricades and other supplies needed. Ms. Owens stated last year the City 
spent $187,000 to prepare for the event.  She continued, they have updated the Operations Plan 
and now need to commit and is asking the amount not to exceed $250,000 which will come from 
fund balance.  Monty Parks made a motion to approve.  Kathryn Williams seconded.  Vote 
was unanimous, 6-0.   
 
Monty Parks made a motion to adjourn to executive session to discuss Real Estate, Litigation 
and Personnel.  Bill Garbett seconded.  Vote was unanimous to approve, 6-0. 
 
Spec Hosti made a motion to adjourn to regular session.  Monty Parks seconded.  Vote was 
unanimous to approve, 6-0. 
 
Spec Hosti made a motion to adjourn.  Bill Garbett seconded.  Vote was unanimous to approve, 
6-0. 
 
Meeting was adjourned at 7:45PM. 
 
 
 
_________________________ 
Janet LeViner, MMC 
Clerk of Council 

- Page 5 -Item #1.



File Attachments for Item:

4. Final Major Subdivision Plat Approval:    Christopher Koncul, 708 Butler Avenue

- Page 6 -



- Page 7 -Item #4.



- Page 8 -Item #4.



- Page 9 -Item #4.



- Page 10 -Item #4.



- Page 11 -Item #4.



- Page 12 -Item #4.



File Attachments for Item:

5. Site Plan Approval, Sec 5-080, Marine Science Center, 37 Meddin, Addition of solar panels to 

the roof of the building

- Page 13 -



- Page 14 -Item #5.



- Page 15 -Item #5.



- Page 16 -Item #5.



- Page 17 -Item #5.



- Page 18 -Item #5.



- Page 19 -Item #5.



- Page 20 -Item #5.



- Page 21 -Item #5.



- Page 22 -Item #5.



- Page 23 -Item #5.



- Page 24 -Item #5.



- Page 25 -Item #5.



- Page 26 -Item #5.



- Page 27 -Item #5.



- Page 28 -Item #5.



- Page 29 -Item #5.



- Page 30 -Item #5.



- Page 31 -Item #5.



- Page 32 -Item #5.



- Page 33 -Item #5.



- Page 34 -Item #5.



- Page 35 -Item #5.



- Page 36 -Item #5.



- Page 37 -Item #5.



File Attachments for Item:

6. MOU Mural on Tybrisa Street

- Page 38 -



- Page 39 -Item #6.



- Page 40 -Item #6.



- Page 41 -Item #6.



File Attachments for Item:

7. First Reading, 2024-02, GMEBS-R, City of Tybee Island Defined Benefit Retirement Plan

- Page 42 -



- Page 43 -Item #7.



- Page 44 -Item #7.



- Page 45 -Item #7.



- Page 46 -Item #7.



- Page 47 -Item #7.



- Page 48 -Item #7.



- Page 49 -Item #7.



- Page 50 -Item #7.



- Page 51 -Item #7.



- Page 52 -Item #7.



- Page 53 -Item #7.



- Page 54 -Item #7.



- Page 55 -Item #7.



- Page 56 -Item #7.



- Page 57 -Item #7.



- Page 58 -Item #7.



- Page 59 -Item #7.



- Page 60 -Item #7.



- Page 61 -Item #7.



- Page 62 -Item #7.



- Page 63 -Item #7.



- Page 64 -Item #7.



- Page 65 -Item #7.



- Page 66 -Item #7.



- Page 67 -Item #7.



- Page 68 -Item #7.



- Page 69 -Item #7.



- Page 70 -Item #7.



- Page 71 -Item #7.



- Page 72 -Item #7.



- Page 73 -Item #7.



- Page 74 -Item #7.



- Page 75 -Item #7.



- Page 76 -Item #7.



- Page 77 -Item #7.



- Page 78 -Item #7.



- Page 79 -Item #7.



- Page 80 -Item #7.



- Page 81 -Item #7.



- Page 82 -Item #7.



- Page 83 -Item #7.



- Page 84 -Item #7.



- Page 85 -Item #7.



- Page 86 -Item #7.



File Attachments for Item:

8. Tracy O'Connell:  Ante Litem:  Mariah Hay and Joseph Schmidt, Nuisance/Zunzibar

- Page 87 -



- Page 88 -Item #8.



- Page 89 -Item #8.



- Page 90 -Item #8.



- Page 91 -Item #8.



- Page 92 -Item #8.



- Page 93 -Item #8.



- Page 94 -Item #8.



- Page 95 -Item #8.



- Page 96 -Item #8.



- Page 97 -Item #8.



- Page 98 -Item #8.



File Attachments for Item:

11. Minutes, Planning Commission, March 18, 2024

- Page 99 -



 

 

  
 
PLANNING COMMISSION                          ACTING CITY MANAGER  
Anna Butler                                        Michelle Owens 
Beau Livingston 
Robert J. Matkowski 
Elaine McGruder                                                                                                          COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR 
S. Michelle Nooney             George Shaw  
David Roberts          
Marie Rodriguez                                         CITY ATTORNEY        

                                         Edward M. Hughes
                                         Tracy O’Connell                                                                   

 
Planning Commission Meeting 

 MINUTES  
March 18, 2024 

 
Chair Elaine McGruder called the March 18, 2024, Tybee Island Planning Commission meeting to 
order. Commissioners present were Anna Butler, Marie Rodriguez, Elaine McGruder, Beau 
Livingston, David Roberts, Robert Matkowski and Michelle Nooney. 
 
Consideration of Minutes: 
Chair Elaine McGruder asked for consideration of the February 12, 2024, meeting minutes. Beau 
Livingston stated he has a minor change on the 1206 Venetian property, to ask what the definition of 
sleeping in sanitary accommodations means and if it has to have a kitchen. He asked if it could have a 
kitchen. Michelle Nooney asked if the minutes could reference the City Council meeting that explains 
the two-year terms. Marie Rodriguez made a motion to approve. Anna Butler seconded. The vote 
to approve was unanimous. 
 
Disclosures/Recusals: 
Chair Elaine McGruder asked if there were any Disclosures or Recusals. There were none. 
 
Old Business: 
Chair Elaine McGruder asked if there was any old business. There was one. 
 
Major subdivision plat final approval -708 Butler Avenue – Chris Koncul 
George Shaw stated our ordinance requires that all major subdivisions’ final plat must come back for 
City Council for final approval. This is a private neighborhood so in this case the roads and 
infrastructure will not be dedicated to the city. It meets all the other requirements. Staff recommends 
approval. Robert Matkowski stated under general notes on the first legal page, no wetland and 
environmental issues have been addressed on this plat. The way it is interpreted is that no one focused 
on that or paid attention to that. George Shaw stated there were none identified. Robert 
Matkowski asked on note number seven where it says has not been verified by field survey, it needs 
to be verified. George Shaw stated the property has been surveyed so it could be referencing the 
neighboring plats.  
Robert Matkowski asked about note number ten. It states building setback information has not 
been provided by governing authority. George Shaw stated he was not sure why that is there or what 
it means, however it is all correct. Anna Butler asked could staff check with whoever prepared the 
plat to correct the notes. Robert Matkowski stated on page two, under field technical notes, it 
indicates a geo technical investigation should be done. George Shaw stated those have been done 
and are in the packet. Robert Matkowski asked under special construction notes, who would be 
checking to see if these are followed. George Shaw stated these are inspected by the county and the 
Community Development Director. Additionally, when they submit the house plans per lot staff goes 

 

- Page 100 -Item #11.



 

 

through all these for the house. Marie Rodriguez made a motion to approve. David Roberts 
seconded. Anna Butler, Marie Rodriguez David Roberts, Beau Livingston, and Michelle 
Nooney voted for the approval. Robert Matkowski voted against the approval. The vote was 5 to 1. 
The vote was approved.  
 
New Business: 
Site Plan: requesting to add solar panels to roof-37 Meddin drive-40001 03012-Zone R-
1/NEC-Tybee Island Marine Science Center. 
George Shaw stated this is a request for solar panels on the roof of the marine science center. This is 
a city owned building. While this does not increase the footprint of the building, it is a city building and 
the city attorney felt this needed to go through the site plan process. The solar panels will reduce the 
electrical cost. The manufacturer states this will meet our 140 mile an hour winds. Also, the 
construction engineer for the building has stated this will handle the weight of the panels. Staff 
recommends approval. Mark Reed, who lives at 202 Eagles Nest, approached the Planning 
Commission and stated he is a trustee of the Marine Science Center and wanted to make his self-
available for any questions. He stated this will reduce the amount of the power bill from about 65 to 
70%. Marie Rodriguez made a motion to approve. Robert Matkowski seconded. The vote to 
approve was unanimous. 
 
Beau Livingston stated under old business, at the last meeting Robert Matkowski asked for a 
follow up on the definition of sleeping and sanitary accommodations. Commissioners wanted to know 
if staff had any updates regarding that. George Shaw stated he did ask the Attorney about that and 
never got a response. He stated he checked with the County. They don’t have a definition for that. It is 
understood to be a bedroom and a bathroom. It is also not defined in our code. He stated he brought 
that up to the LDC review consultant to add or change the language for that. 
 
David Roberts made a motion to begin the meetings for the rest of our term with the pledge of 
allegiance. Marie Rodriguez seconded. The vote to approve was unanimous. 
 
 
 
 
 
Adjournment: 8:00pm 
Lisa L. Schaaf 

- Page 101 -Item #11.


	Top
	Item #1.	Minutes:  City Council Meeting, March 28, 2024
	minutes

	Item #2.	Pat Leiby:  Dedication Ceremony, Tybee Island Black History Trail
	Item #3.	Julia Pearce:  Cape Coast Mayor and Delegation Visit
	Item #4.	Final Major Subdivision Plat Approval:    Christopher Koncul, 708 Butler Avenue
	708 Butler - SUBDIVISION

	Item #5.	Site Plan Approval, Sec 5-080, Marine Science Center, 37 Meddin, Addition of solar panels to the roof of the building
	37 MEDDIN-SITE PLAN

	Item #6.	MOU Mural on Tybrisa Street
	20240403154311096

	Item #7.	First Reading, 2024-02, GMEBS-R, City of Tybee Island Defined Benefit Retirement Plan
	20240403161032766

	Item #8.	Tracy O'Connell:  Ante Litem:  Mariah Hay and Joseph Schmidt, Nuisance/Zunzibar
	0028_001

	Item #9.	Monty Parks:  Glass Recycling Update
	Item #10.	Kathryn Williams:  Request Montlhy Financial Reports
	Item #11.	Minutes, Planning Commission, March 18, 2024
	PC MINUTES-MAR 18 2024

	Bottom



